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Federal National Mortgage Association et al Doc. 1

WO
INTHE UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA
James McCalmonkt al, No. CV-13-02107-PHX-3JT
Plaintiffs, ORDER
V.

Flederal National Mortgage Associati@n,
al.,

Defendants.

At issue is Defendant’'s Motion for Bumary Judgment (Docl07), to which
Plaintiffs filed a Response (Doc. 137) andféelant filed a Reply (Doc. 147). Also 3
issue is Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial Summadydgment (Doc. 118), to which Defenda
filed a Response (Doc. 133) and Rtdfs filed a Reply (Doc. 151).

l. BACKGROUND

Plaintiffs James and Katherine McCalmdied a Complaint (Doc. 1, Compl.) orn
October 16, 2013, alleging th#tey were “subjected to ¢hrepeated violation of ang
intentional non-compliance with the F&redit Reporting Actl5 U.S.C. 8§ 168&t sed.
(Compl. 1 1.) Defendant, Federal Nationdbrtgage Association (“FNMA”), is a
government-sponsored entity created by Casgjre purchase mortgage loans from lend
and thereby help stabilize the market fosidential mortgagedefendant licenses ar
automated underwriting system known as Desktop Underwriter (“DU”). (Compl. 11
19; Answ. § 19.) DU informs lende whether a prospectivean would be eligible for

purchase by Defendant.
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Lenders who use DU input a consumerig-fiterge” credit report, which consist$

of the consumer’s credit reports from threetlué top credit repasries in the United
States. (Compl. at T 21.) From there, DUhgrates a Findings Report that details t
consumer’s credit and concludebether or not a loan made that consumer would be
eligible for purchase by Defendant. (ConI30.) A Findings Repothat lists a “Refer
with Caution” rating indicate that Defendant would not purchase the subject mortg
loan.

The rating produced in a DU Findings Repisribased on the consumer’s creq
history—most relevant here, the program considers whether a consumer has comg

short sale of a property or whether a constsr@operty has beenreclosed upon. A loan

to a consumer who made a short sale afatgaged property may still be eligible far

purchase by Defendant, as long as the shigtagzurred more than two years before t
consumer’s current loan application. Buttife consumer previously had a proper
foreclosed upon, he must wa#ven years before any loan made to him becomes elig
for purchase by Defendant. Any applicatimefore those seven years are up would co
back with a “Refer with Caution” rating andéelineligible for delivey to [Defendant] as a
DU loan.”

Plaintiffs allege that Defendant failed d¢listinguish between foreclosure and &
short sale in its DU algorithm. (Compl. 1 74-83.) Indeed, Defendant respond
widespread concern about this practice in30ghen it releasetDesktop Underwriter
Clarification.” (Doc. 1-3, DU Clarificatin.) Defendant explained that DU review
“‘manner of payment” (“MOP”) codes associated with importgansactions in a
consumer’s credit history asway to determine the ratimgthe DU Findings Report. (DU
Clarification at 1.) A foreclosure is indicatéy MOP code 8 (foregckure). And at the time
of Defendant’s clarification, “no codes pided in the credit report data received by D

[] specifically identify a preforeclosure salke(DU Clarification.) Thus, Plaintiffs allege

! Defendant uses the terms “preforeclessale” and “short sale” interchangeabl
(DU Clarification at 1.)
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that any consumer who engage a short sale had aMOP code 8 appear on his DU
Findings Report, indicating a foreclosure ttiak not actually occur, and thereby renderir
any loan within seven years of the short sagdigible for purchase by Defendant. (Compg
1 44.)

Plaintiffs negotiated a short sale of thegal estate in 2004Compl. 1 34.) After
waiting the requisite two years to apply fonew mortgage loan for a separate proper
Plaintiffs were denied conventional monggafinancing multiple times. (Compl. 1 36
52.) Plaintiffs allege that “the ‘foreclosunedtation [] was preventing them from obtainin
financing.” (Compl. § 52.)

Plaintiffs filed this action, seeking neages under 15 U.S.C. § 1681n and § 168
for both willful and negligenviolations of the Fair G&dit Reporting Act (“FCRA”).
(Compl. § 99.) In 2014, Defendant moved to dssrthe case on the grounds that it is n
subject to the FCRA. (Doc. 23). Distritidge Holland granted Defendant’s Motion af
dismissed the case. (Doc. 38.) The Ninth dtrtater reversed. (Doc. 48.) The case w
remanded and assigned to District Judge T(izbc. 53.) On March 21, 2018, Defendar
filed a Motion for Summary Judgment (Doc. 10Rkintiffs subsequently filed their owr|
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment (Doc. 118).

LEGAL STANDARDS

A. Motion for Summary Judgment

Under Rule 56(c) of the Federal Rules@ifiil Procedure, summary judgment i
appropriate when: (1) the movastiows that there is no geneidispute as to any materig
fact; and (2) after viewing #éhevidence most favorably thhe non-moving party, the
movant is entitled to prevail as attes of law. Fed. R. Civ. P. 5&€elotex Corp. v. Catrett
477 U.S. 317, 322-23 (198@isenberg v. Ins. Co. of N. ArB15 F.2d 1285, 1288-89 (Ott
Cir. 1987). Under this standard, “[o]nly dispatover facts that might affect the outcon
of the suit under governingybstantive] law will properly @clude the entry of summary
judgment.”Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inel77 U.S. 242, 248.086). A “genuine issue”
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of material fact arises only “if the evidenisesuch that a reasonable jury could returr
verdict for the nonmoving partyltl.

In considering a motion for summary judgmethe court must regard as true th
non-moving party’s evidence, iiffis supported by affidavitsr other evidentiary material.
Celotex 477 U.S. at 324Eisenberg 815 F.2d at 1289. Howenydhe non-moving party
may not merely rest on its pleadings; it musiduce some significant probative eviden
tending to contradict the owing party’s allegations, thdvg creating a material questiof
of fact. Anderson477 U.S. at 256-57 (holding thaetplaintiff must present affirmative
evidence in order to defeat a propeslypported motion for summary judgmeftyst Nat'l
Bank of Ariz. v. Cities Serv. C891 U.S. 253, 289 (1968).

“A summary judgment motion cannot defeated by relying solely on conclusor
allegations unsupported by factual datédylor v. List 880 F.2d 1040, 1045 (9th Cir
1989). “Summary judgment must be enterediagfaa party who failso make a showing
sufficient to establish the ex@énce of an element essential to that party’s case, ang
which that party will bear theurden of proof at trial.”United States v. CarteP06 F.2d
1375, 1376 (9th Cir. 1990) (quoti@elotex 477 U.S. at 322).

B. Fair Credit Reporting Act

At issue in this case is an allegedlation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act

("“FCRA"). The FCRA governs consumerpiting agencies (“CRAs”). A consume
reporting agency is

any person which, for monetary fedsges, or on a cooperate nonprofit basis,
regularly engages in whole or inrpan the practice of assembling or

evaluating consumer credit informati or other information on consumers
for the purpose of furnishing consumreports to third parties, and which

uses any means or facility of ins¢éate commerce for the purpose of
preparing or furnishing consumer reports.

15 U.S.C. § 1681a(f).
Under 8§ 1681e (“Reasonable Procedymewision”) of the FCRA, “[w]henever a

consumer reporting agency prepares ansamer report it shall follow reasonabl

procedures to assure maximum possible @oyu of the information concerning thg
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individual about whom the pert relates.” 15 U.S.C. § 168(b). A “consumer report” is
any
communication of any information bycansumer reporting agency bearing
on a consumer’s credit worthiness, crathinding, credit capacity, character,
general reputation, personal charactersstor mode of living which is used
or expected to be used or collectadvhole or in part for the purpose of

serving as a factor in establishing ttonsumer’s eligibty for-- (A) credit
or insurance to be used primarily gﬂrsonal, family, ohousehold purposes.

15 U.S.C. § 1681a(d)(1).

A CRA may violate the FRA either negligently owillfully. Under § 1681n
(“willful noncompliance section”), a violator igble to the consumer for: (1) any actui
damages between $100 and $1000; (2) punitaraages; and (3) “the costs of the actif
together with reasonable attefns fees as determined kye court.” U.S.C. § 1681n(a)
Under 8§ 16810 (“negligent noncompliancets®t’), a violator isliable only for actual
damages sustained by the consumer and “this af the action together with reasonah
attorney’s fees as determinbg the court.” U.S.C. § 16819(dn other words, a willful
violation carries the additt@l consequence of punitive rdages, while a negligent
violation does not.

The willful noncompliance section contemplates not only those violations whg
CRA acts knowingly, but alsahere a CRA acts recklesstyviolation of the FCRASee
Safeco Ins. Co. of America v. BuB51 U.S. 47, 57-61 (2007A). CRA acts in reckless

disregard of a consumer’s rights when itsa@ac“is not only a violéion under a reasonable

reading of the statute’s termst shows that the companynra risk of violating the law
substantially greater than thek associated with a read) that was merely carelessd:

at 69. Thus, as the Court explained in ity 20, 2017 Order, “a party alleging a willfu
violation of the FCRA under 15 U.S.C. § 168thast establish that the defendant’s condt
reflected (1) an objectively unreasonable reqdih the statute that (2) ran the risk ¢
violating the law substantially greater théme risk associated with a mere carele
reading.” (July 20, 2017 Order &t) Courts consider the following factors to determi

whether a reading is objectively reasonablgwlether the interpretation is grounded

=

ele ¢

Ict
Df

SS

n




© 00 N O O b~ W DN B

N NN N NN NNDNRRR R R R R B B
0w ~N O OO0 W NP O © 00N O 0 W N B O

the text of the statute; (2) whether thera iack of guidance from appellate courts or the
Federal Trade Commission that might haveicated the reading was incorrect; and (3)
whether the FCRA itself is unclear on the isss&feco Ins. Co. of Apb51 U.S. at 69. A
CRA who violates the FCRA, but did so basedan interpretation of the Act that was not
objectively unreasonable, cannot be liable for a williolation. That kg distinction is at
issue before the Court today.

[11.  ANALYSIS

Plaintiffs claim that Defendant, actirag a consumer reporting agency (“CRA

d

N

violated the FCRA either willfully or neigjently. Defendant movder summary judgment
on the basis thatitis not a CRA, and if it is, ihet not subject to either willful or negligen
liability under the FCRA(MSJ at 6-18.)

The Ninth Circuit’'s recent memorandum opiniornZiabriskie v. Federal National
Mortgage Associatigrl7-16000 (9th Cir. De@6, 2018) is dispositivieere. In that similar
action, to which Defendant was also a partg, Kinth Circuit held that Defendant is not ja
CRA and therefore is not subject to the FCRA. The holding restileeissue before the
Court and necessitates granting Summary Judgmast be granted. Plaintiffs allege np
causes of action other than vitdes of the FCRA, and so thease also must be dismissed.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED granting Defendant’s Motion for Summary
Judgment (Doc. 107).

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED denying Plaintiffs’ Maion for Partial Summary
Judgment (Doc. 118).

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED denying as moot Defendés Motion to Exclude

Evan D. Hendricks (Doc. 116), Defendant’s Motion to Exclude Lisa Lund (Doc. 117),anc

Plaintiffs’ Motion in Limine to Exclud&estimony of Neal.ibrock (Doc. 123).
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IT ISFURTHER ORDERED directing the Clerk of Court to enter judgment f¢

Defendant and close this case.
Dated this 15th day of January, 201

Q. Tuchi
District Jge




